# MINUTES of the meeting of Health & Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee held at Council Chamber - Brockington on Friday 11 October 2013 at 10.00 am

Present: Councillor JG Jarvis (Chairman)

**Councillor SJ Robertson (Vice Chairman)** 

Councillors: PA Andrews, PL Bettington, WLS Bowen, MJK Cooper, KS Guthrie,

J Hardwick, JLV Kenyon, MD Lloyd-Hayes and J Stone

In attendance: Councillors JW Millar, C Nicholls, GJ Powell and AJW Powers

Officers: J Davidson (Director For People's Services), G Dean (Scrutiny Officer), P

Meredith (Head of Safeguarding & Review), J Rzezniczek (Interim Head of

Improvement) and DJ Penrose (Governance Services)

#### 75. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillor GA Vaughan-Powell.

# 76. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)

Councillor J Hardwick for Councillor GA Vaughan-Powell.

#### 77. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

#### 78. MINUTES

The Minutes of the Meeting held on the 12 September were approved and signed as a correct record.

# 79. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR FUTURE SCRUTINY

There were no suggestions.

## 80. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

There were no questions.

## 81. WORK PROGRAMME

The Committee noted its Work Programme. During the ensuing debate, the following points were made:

That caution should be exercised when looking at the Work Programme, the addition
of too many items would make it hard to achieve the results that the Committee would
like to see. Ideas should be prioritised onto the Work Programme.

- That Public Health should be an area that the Committee should first consider and could be addressed through task and finish groups. The following suggestions were made:
  - Occupational Therapy and the provision of equipment
  - Mental Health Services
  - Standing item on engagement with the Health & Wellbeing Board
- That the Access to Services Review would await the outcome of the Clinical Commissioning Groups Urgent Care Review.
- That as officers were under such pressure at the moment, a focus on communication across the Council could be of benefit to the Committee.
- A review of the effectiveness of the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub should be included
- The Chairman of Healthwatch suggested that Members should visit the
  organisation to see for themselves on order to see what it did. The Interim
  Director for Adults Wellbeing welcomed this suggestion and said that
  Healthwatch would allow people in the County to feed back into the
  commissioning process. A report on the performance of Healthwatch would be
  received on a biannual basis.

RESOLVED: That the work programme be noted.

#### 82. ADULT WELLBEING ORGANISATIONAL PRIORITIES 2013 - 17

The Committee received a presentation on the Adult Wellbeing Priorities for 2013 to 2017. During the presentation the Interim Director for Adults Wellbeing highlighted the following areas:

- The role of the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWBB) and that the Boards priorities highlighted both the way that the partners needed to work together and that the Board would be expect to be democratically accountable as one of the criteria under which it worked for the benefit of residents of Herefordshire.
- There were four key themes that the HWBB was addressing which included:
  - Staying Healthy ways of encouraging residents to look after themselves and thereby reduce the impact on the healthcare system.
  - Communities a large piece of work which would start in November and would look at how greater benefit for the individual could be generated by large groups of people.
  - o Integrated Working how reorganisations were carried out.
  - Think Family the impact of alcoholism in the County.
- The specific aim of the organisational priorities was to 'enable residents to live safe, healthy and independent lives and to maintain service provision, to those with need, within the available resource'. Commissioning work was being undertaken in order to achieve a reduction in demand for services and to target support where it was most needed.

In the ensuing discussion the following points were made:

 That the next meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board would address the issue of an apparent lack of strategy in partnership working. That care should be taken when depending too much on volunteers, as people
only tended to volunteer for activities they were interested in and their time was
limited. The Interim Director concurred, and said that the issue of unstructured
volunteering would be addressed and co-ordination to understand where the
gaps in cover were would be considered.

**RESOLVED:** That the report be noted.

#### 83. CARE AND SUPPORT BILL 2013

The Committee received a presentation on the Care and Support Bill 2013. During the presentation the Interim Director for Adults Wellbeing highlighted the following areas:

- That the Bill would change care and support in two fundamental ways, as the
  focus would move to promoting people's independence, connections and
  wellbeing by enabling them postpone the need for care and support. This
  alteration would be supported by ensuring that people were in control of services
  and that services would respond to what they wanted.
- The Integrated Transformation Fund was a pooled budget for all health and social care services to work more closely together in local areas, led by the Health & Wellbeing Board. It had a substantial level of funding, and would held to deal with demographic pressures in adult social care. Whilst it would not come into full effect until 2015/16, it was important to build momentum during the coming year using monies transferred from the NHS to the local authority to support the required transformation.
- Local performance and governance would be overseen by the Health & Wellbeing Board and the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) had set up a Task & Finish Group on how the Bill would be implemented which would report to the Board.

The Chief Operating Officer said that this was a complex area for the CCG. Of the overall budget of £3.4bn, £1.9bn had been set aside nationally to fund the changes. Herefordshire's share of this was £7m which was currently committed to frontline services.

The Cabinet Member (Health and Wellbeing) said the Committee would be made aware of any material or significant issues that occurred throughout this process. There would be a great deal of meetings involved and briefing notes would be provided between meetings for the Committee as the situation changed.

The Cabinet Member went on to say that he had recently been involved in meetings looking at the initial projections for the formal budgets, and that close budget management would be crucial to this process. It was an issue for all authorities, but particularly for rural counties, and the local MPs had been made aware of the situation.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

# 84. TASK & FINISH GROUP REPORT: SCRUTINY OF CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING IN HEREFORDSHIRE

The Chairman of the Task and Finish Group presented the Task & Finish Group Report: Scrutiny of Children's Safeguarding in Herefordshire. She highlighted the following areas:

- That the group had felt that one of the main outcomes was the necessity to look more closely at the recruitment and retention of social workers.
- That there needed to be a commitment to safeguarding between all the partners involved. A Standing Group of Members looking at safeguarding issues would help reinforce this.
- That the recent Peer Review that had been undertaken in safeguarding had been supportive of the Group's report
- Better use of Frameworki should be made than was currently the case. Other councils were using it effectively, Cornwall being a prime example.
- That there was a strong view that Member's allowances should not be paid until Members had been trained in safeguarding issues.

A Member of the Group went on to say that it had been a very in-depth Review that had been well worth doing. She pointed out that in Cheshire and Cheshire West, the all aspects of the council felt that children were important, which was not the case in Herefordshire and safeguarding was not cascading through the organisation.

The cabinet Member (Young People and Children's Wellbeing) thanked the Review Group for their work and said that all the recommendations within the report make good sense and would be accepted. He went on to say that Paul Meredith would be replacing Kathy O'Mahony as Assistant Director Safeguarding & Early Help and he would be meeting with all of the senior staff of the social workers in Social Care. Whilst Children's Services were becoming more central to the Council, there was still work to be done. Public Health would concentrate on the family and family services over the coming year.

## **RESOLVED:**

#### That:

- (a) The Committee considered the report of the Task & Finish Group Scrutiny of Children's Safeguarding in Herefordshire, in particular its recommendations, and agreed the findings for submission to the Executive;
- (b) Subject to the Review being approved, the Executive's response to the Review including an action plan should be reported to the first available meeting of the Committee after the Executive had approved its response.